CENTER ON RACE, POVERTY & THE ENVIRONMENT

FALFH SAHTLAGS AoasCar (I034-1907)

480 SEARY ITREET, SUITE 500 peeren fBaO

TAM FRAMCISLSD, Sn 4102
LUKE W. COLE

415/346-4178 = FAX 415/546-B723 TIRECTER
¥ ANMAHOT MIETD

BINEWELLEIGC.0RG HAnAGINE DoredTonr
CAkOLIHE PANRELL

Lairrxl, FIAEETEHE

BRENHT J. HEWELY

FrAFF ATTOMMEYR

FuBAHA DE AHDA

AU NITY ORGAMITES

AYIHLAH Kar

A B T

December 19, 2005
Via Federal Express
Eurika Durr, Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Environmental Appeals Board

Arie] Rios Building 77

1200 Permsylvania Avenue, N. W, T

Washington, D.C. 20460-0001 Lo
E [

Re:  Consent Agreements and Proposed Final Orders for Animal Feeding
Operations Order Numbers: CAA -HQ-2005-xx; CERCLA-HQ-2005-xx;
EPCRA-HQ-2005-xx -

Dear Ms. Durr:

Enclosed are an eriginal and five copies of the Brief of Association of Irritated Residents, et
al. in Opposition to the Consent Agreaments and Proposed Final Orders for Animal Feeding
Operations. Please endorse the enclosed copy and return in the postage paid envelope, Please

contact me with any questions. Thank you for your time and courtesy.

Sincerely,

i/

Bient Newell

= FROVIDIMG LEGAL & TECHNICAL ASSISTANGCE TO THE GRASSROOTS MOVEMENT FOR ENVIROMMENTAL JUSTICE &



BEFORE THE ENVIRONMENTAL APPEALS BOARD
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY | T e
WASIIINGTON, D.C. C

In re: Consent Arreament and Final Order
CAA-HQ-2005-xx

Congent Agreements and Proposed Final CERCLA-HQ-20{5-xx

Orders for Animal Feeding Operations EPCRA-HQ-2003

BRIEF OF ASSOCIATION OF IRRITATED RESIDENTS, ET AL. IN QPPGSITION TO
THE CONSENT AGREEMENTS AND PROPOSED FINAL ORDERS FOR ANIMAL
FEEDING OPERATIONS




TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES ... - e s s isssssce v ress s st st rera s sssssasstie st sssnserasases i
INTRODTUCTION ....oooovoviererieiecss corsrersrmieressissesassessssees soreresmirarsssssesassstssssn -1oteissaismesasssessscsmmiosessismiaissarsssore - o
BACKGROTUINIY ..ottt ssssssssss 041640 s 518 8181 et s £ 41 = et rs e bbbt aee
ARGUMENT ..o ettt sara s reseses seseri s it ss 4 braaasamresseses 258e4 b PR 4440wt et £ oo nE et 1A d 443 banene e oEeb et eae Peanne s

L. THE AGREEMENTS VIOLATE THE CONSOLIDATED RULES OF PRACTICE.......5

A. The Agreements Fail to Allege Specific State Implementation Plan Requirements

that AFOS VIOIATE. et s s s s sa s cere e rans G

B.  The Agreements Fail to Allege Eimissions to Establish Liability. ...cccocoevevevveene. 7

C.  OQAQPS Fails to Justify the Use of Potential ViolationS.......cocciierireennns s ceeenvisnnn 8

I THE AGREEMENTS VIOLATE THE CLEAN AIR ACT........co ot cvsvsrenens 11

T, THE AGREEMENTS VIOLATE STATUTORY PENALTY REQUIREMENTS AND

DO NOT COMPORT WITH EPA™S PENALTY POLICIES ..o e 12

A. The Penalties Fail to Recoup Economic Benefit. .o v e 13

B. The Penalties are Inconsistent with EPA’s Penalty Policies. ..coovveciiiieiineenen 15

1V,  THE BOARD HAS JURISDICTION T0O REVIEW THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT .......19

CONCLUSION. . ctr1ssassrarens ressesese et sesaess s 44050 sasmsaseses s18seseess 1S4 4Es SEeten £ 2EeE £ e o8 448 P neemasEebetes e PR A48 remens 19

BRIEF OF ASSOCIATION OF IRRITATED BESIDENTS, ET AL IN QPPOSITION Iy PROMGSED CAFOS
i



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

CABES

Association of Irritated Residents v. Fred Schakel Dairy, ef af,, Civ. No. 03-00707 (E.D, Cal.)...2

Sierra Club v. Seabord Farms, Inc., 387 F3d 1167 {10th Cir, 2004) e eceesrereiss e erens v 2
Qierra Club v. Tyson Foods, Inc., 290 F. Supp. 2d 693 (W.D. Ky. 2003) o 3
STATUTES

42 U.B.C. §§ THAANAD oot e s s en e e et e bt b srana e 11,12
A2 UB.C, §8 TAI(ANT) oo st earn s et 4 sa s e et 11
A2 TG § TALA(EI1) teterreereee cererrisrincasss i s rese s s sens e pr s e e s s baea s et e e s b en b ee e s aens 12
42 U.8.C, § TA1Ha)1NCI{G) rvrrrereerreres st conrass s sssss s ss s 4 ressss s e b sa s s l
ABTLBUC, § 1475 e s es s seees e bansas seeas R Seb AR PR bRt b E e 2
A2 TTS.C. G TATUA) oocreririceriee et rese ettt b en s rases ore s shes o4 bbb ea b s FepE e SR e A4 b nans eae s sb et s 7
A2 TLE.C § TO0Z{EMSY rviorrmrereeeeecsreres nsissshss s istrasasns sasas s aeaes shb o4 444 saea s a8 eEeEoas bt re R eSS eEed P4 e 2
G2 TSB.C. ET5ULA  ooerieeeeeerereeeeeeeericra s e mheaerereseees s HreeEedssdabsbe et rerEsEE s EheE RS 4R b neE s FenE RS L4 e pranas 2
A2 ULS.CL § TELLATY wereeseeresceeriersransasresrs smeesses seress aasbansmrases s sesss st sravatd4s aseees £ ot sesebePhnennssestes sresscunron 7
G2 ULB.C. G T511BJA) o creriee st rese s et st sr et s seen s e ses naed e b beenen e re e e S nE S 4 b et EenE e A b ene s 7
A2 TEB.C, § TOLLA(ED wovrreeerierinisermumeresmesses sessrases b sssmrases reasss shasseobhranease reessssstsssedins s sessss shsssssssnsassnens 7
A2 ULS,Co § T513R  covcorrisesvorreesmseesesssesssssesesassessaan esssi eenss b3 1essssescasensesassssemes cemsas £ v 448 seeissennnees 2
A2 TT8.C. 8 T5138(DM3) trrore oo nr i et s e d e e ne s e R s 7
AZTTSC. §TOOLA ceoereeeeeeeecerece et esterases eeversteeeecterhrans e renes eesees s hb e eaes s eemene st epeedn e eats s eent et bheanrrannnes 2
A2 TG, 8§ DO00{ANIY coeoreeees e rsirrestemrrsns e et st ranas seseeasada rbrasenas s aese s sabr b es rreenansssenea pranen s en 12
A2 T1LS.C. § TLOAS(BIIICT coreccetermescerenes s esess s ran s s nene s sesea s a4 s m e e ns e scats brnanan s enessssbrasamanans 12

BRIEF OF ASSOCIATION OF IRRITATED RESIDENTS, £7 4L, TN OBPOSITION TO PROPOSED CAFOS
ifi



REGULATIONS
A0 CFR, § 22 14(AN2Y o oiotvicrireeeereeees e ctsrcaass e seee srsmsns eesm et s etes sebn s b4 et nas s e s aeae s neanas b 6
A0 CFR. § 22 1BIIM2Y oottt nesms nemn s e e sesas s sem s b e e nasaes e er a4 b nans renn 56,19
A CER. § 2218(BM3) coeeiiniccorne e st ssssacasraneen eeseas rassaas e s sesessasabrba e enes eaesiassbans 6, 19
40 C.E.R. part 52, Subparts B —FFE .ottt e e sns s e sessnaat s o 6
AU CFR. § 2Z2.1A(JZAY o ceeeeciiirnrescs e e e st sreaess e eas s e e s ad b baaes s e e s a4 b reanas saeanns s 6

FEDERAL REGISTER NOTICES

60 Fed. Reg. 66T06{Dec. 22, 1994) it siseniiomsnnnmesessis sssass bt resesesss ssssass pasans resesesinns 9
63 Fed. Rog. 9464 (Feb. 25, 1998) ettt st s naas e s s sacone 6
67 Fed, Reg. 5586 (February 6, 2002) ... it enssiiartnsn e sesmssinsiesena e 17
67 Fed. Reg. 76754 {Dec. 13, 2002) i et mesesins ssssss et s sssnssssscssssanass reseseans 10
69 Fed. Reg. 22797 (ADL. 27, 20041 o1oeriee ettt sssesns ers s st s s seesss e 10
0 Fed. Reg. 4958 {Jan, 31, 2005} ittt scsnssssnss s esssa s e b sssssss s sesn s asbeen e passim
70 Fed. Reg, 16266 {March 30, 2003) oo e stmaisirs e s asss s s sssarencasons 3
70 Fed. Reg, 40016 (July 12, 2005} . iiisirrciissr e snssssiiess s bees resssss ssssssaaasressss snsssssnsrenses seseas 3
70 Fed. Reg. 44631 {Angust 3, Z005] (i seessns s sans st sessssasassssasraness s ssssasans 3

ENVIRONMENTAL APPEALS BOARD DECISIONS

In the Mattcr of ADT Security Services, inc., Docket No. CWA-FIQ-2002-6000, EPCRA-HQ-

2002-6000 {EAB, Oct. 18, 2002) ..ot eenee e sms i reasane e st aterrssnse s seea b esaessssnsssssne 8

In the Matter of Advance Auto Parts, Inc., Advance Stores Company, Western Auto Supply

Company, Discount Auto Parts, loe., Docket No. HQ-2004-6001 (EAB, Ang. 5, 2004} ......... 820

BRIEF OF ASSOCIATION OF IRRITATED REQIDENTS, £7 4L, IN OPPOSITION T PROPOSED CAFOS
v




INTRODUCTION

The Consent Agresments and Proposed Final Orders (“Agreements™ or “Alr Compliance
Agrecment™) viclate the statutory and regulatory requirements that govern EPA’s enforcement
anthority. The Agreements disregard specific provisions of the Consolidated Rules of Practice,
the Clean Air Act, and applicable civil penalty policies. In fotal, these deficiencies expose the
Agreements as a rulemaking disguised as enforcement.

The Office of Alr Quality Planning and Standards and the Office of Enforcement and
Compliance Assurance (collectively “OAQPS™) seek to insulate the Agrcements from
Eavironmental Appcals Board review by arguing that the Board lacks jurisdiction to review
anything but the penalty component of the Agreements, If accepted, OAQPS’s policy-making-
by-enforcement approach would usher in a new era of unchecked ageney action, and prevent the
Board from exercising its now-existing authority under the Consolidated Rules of Practice,

The Association of Irritated Residents, Clean Water Action Alliance of Minnesota,
Community Association for Restoration of the Environment, Environmental Integrity Project,
Towa Citizens for Community Improvement, and Sietra Club (collectively “ATR™) respectfully
request that the Board decline to ratify the Agreements.

BACKGROUND

EPA has existing authority under the Clean Air Act to require any person who owns or
opecates an emissions source to {1) mstall and maiatain monitoring equipment; (2) sample
emissions; (3) submit compliance certifications; and {4) provide any other information the
agency may rcasonably require, 42 ULS.C. § 7414a)1}C)-(G). Here, OAQPS ignores this

authority and instead seeks to use the Agreements to obtain the same information that QAQPS




can require under 42 1LS.C. § 7414{a}(1}, and yet gives any participating operation immunity
from prosecution in exchange for cooperation in monitoring and identifying violations, amd
payment of a small fine, See 70 Fod. Reg. 4958, 4958-4960 (Jan. 31, 2005}

Confined livestock operations, or animal feeding operations {(AFQOs) as they are
technically known, emit several air pollutants regulated by the Clean Air Act, the
Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act (“CERCLA™), and the
Entergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act {“EPCRA™), See 70 Fed, Reg. 4958,
4959 (Jan. 31, 2005). Ammonia and hydrogen sulfide emissions trigger an obligation to report
toxic releascs under section 103 of CERCLA, 42 U.B.C. § 9603, and section 304 of EPCRA, 42
U.8.C. § 11004, Emissions of volatile organic compounis, particulate matter, hydrogen sulfide,
and nitrogen oxides trigger permitting requirements under the Clean Air Act. See 42 U.S.C, §
7475 (permit requirements for attainment areas), § 7502(c)(5) (new source revicw permits
required), § 751ta {new source review permit thresholds for ozone nonattainment areas), §
7513a (new source review permit thresholds for particulate matter nonattainment areas), § 7661a
(Titlc V permit programs) 2

Several citizen suits have been brought to enforce these requirements. See, g.g., Sicrra

Chub v. Seabord Farms, Inc., 387 F.3d 1167 (10th Cir. 2004) {CERCLA and EPCRA citizen

suity; Sierra Club v, Tyson Foods, Inc., 295 F. Supp. 2d 693 (W.D. Ky, 2003) {CERCLA and

! Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards and the Office of Enforcement and Compliance
Assurance jointly created this policy. Sec 70 Fed. Reg. 4958, 4962 (Jan. 31, 2005); 70 Fed. Reg.
40016, 40022 {July 22, 26045)

? The Clean Air Act designates arcas that meet the federal health based standards, including
ozone (smog) and particulate matter, as “attainment areas,” while the statute designates those

that do not as “nonattainment areas.”
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EPCRA citizen snit); Association of Irritated Residents v. Fred Schakel Dairy, ¢f af., Civ. No,

{5-00707 (E.D). Cal.} (Clean Air Act new source review citizen suit).

Prior to OAQPS’s publication of the Air Compliance Agreement in the Federal Register,
AlR learmed that OAQPS had been negotiating with AFO industry representatives since 2002 to
shield animal feeding operations from: lability under the Clean Air Act, CERCLA, and EPCRA,
Contrary to OAQPS’s claims,’ relevant stakcholders, such as the concemed public and residents
living near polluting livestock facilities, were not allowed to participate in the development of
the Air Compliance Agrcement. Interested members of the public were forced to file a lawsuit
under the Freedom of Information Act to compel QAQPS to disclose the documents stemming
from meetings between OAQPS and the AFO industry, including an carly dJraft of the
Agreement,?

On January 31, 2005, EPA published & notice of consent agreement and final order in the
Federal Register, requested public comment, and established a 90-day period for AFQs to sign
up for the Air Compliance Agreement. 70 Fed, Reg. 4958 {Jan. 31, 2005). EPA published threc
subscquent Federal Register notices on March 30, 2005, July 12, 2005, and Angust 3, 2005,
extending the sign-up and public comment peried, responding to comments, and again extending
the sign-up period, respectively, See 70 Fed. Reg. 16266 (March 30, 2005); 70 Fed. Reg. 40016

{Iuly 12, 2005); 70 Fed. Reg, 44631 {August 3, 2005).

* OAQPS notes in the Federal Register notice that it “worked with numerous stakcholders for 3
years to develop the Agrecment.” 70 Fed. Reg. 40016, 40017 (July 12, 2003).
1 See Andrew Martin, Livestock Industry Finds Friends in EPA, Chicago Tribune, May 16, 2004,
attached as Exhibit 1 {noting that “[ilnternal EP A documents show that the proposed program to
menitor air polluticn at livestock farms—a contentious topic in rural America—was largely
conceived and heavily influenced by lobbyists for the livestock industry™).
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The notice and comment process was largely a futile exercize since QAQPS had
foreclosed any opportunities to modify the Air Compliance Agreement in response to comments
by allowing AFOs to sign up for the agreement during the comment period. See 70 Fed. Reg.
4958 (explaining that “{t]he sign-up period for eligible AFQOs to sign the Agreement will run for
00 days from the date of this notice™). The sign-up period has now closed, and AFO industry
estimates indicate that “[m]ore than 13,000 farms are involved.™

AIR has filed petitions for review in the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals under the Clean
Air Act, the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act
{CERCLA), and the Administrative Procedure Act to challenge the Agreement. See Association

of Iimitated Residents, et al. v. EPA, No. 05-117 {D.C. Circuit} {filed May 27, 2005); Association

of ritated Residents, et al. v. BPA, No, 05-1337 (D.C. Circuit} (filed Angust 22, 2005}, Clean

Water Action Alliance of Minnesota v. EPA, No, 05-1336 (D.C. Circuit} {filed August 22,

2005}

Cn November 9, 2005, OAQPS forwarded the first twenty executed agreements to the
Board for approval, The Board ordered supplemental briefing, granted AIR the opportunity to
file this non-party brief, and held a hearing on December 13, 20035,

ARGUMENT

QAQPS and Animal Feeding Operation industry representatives crafied the Air
Compliance Agreement as a policy tool intending to give OAQPS air emission monitoring data
and the industry safe harbor. QAQPS chose to use the Air Compliance Agreement, not its

existing Clean Air Act section 114 authority, to *bring the entire AFQ industry inte compliance

5 Air Consent Agreement & Emissions Monitoring Study, Power Point Presentation delivered by
John Thorne, Executive Director of the Agricultural Air Research Council, attached as Exhibit 2.
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with the CAA, section 103 of CERCLA, and section 304 of EPCRA.” 70 Fed. Reg. 4938, 4961
{Tan, 31, 2003).

CGAQPS crafted the Air Compliance Agreement in 4 manner that violates specific
requirernents of the Consolidated Rules of Practice, the Clean Air Act, and the standards for
establishing civil penalties. These deficiencies include resclving liability without aileging air
pollutant emissions in excess of applicable thresholds, delaying compliance beyond the one-year
limit, and failing to apply penalty policies. OAQPS’s brief and argument at the December 13,
2005 hearing did not resolve these fundamental deficiencies.

Apparently recognizing the Agreements” vulnerabilité,r, OAQPS also argues that the
Board lacks jurisdiction to review anything but the civil penalty component of the agreement,
This argument has no merit, as the Board has clear jurisdiction to ratify the entire agreement
under the Consolidated Rules of Practice. 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.18(b)(2), (3). To accept QAQPS’s
argument would effectively render the Board a bystander, and lead to more instances of law-
making by enforcement,

L THE AGREEMENTS VIOLATE THE CONSOLIDATED RULES OF FRACTICE

The Agreements lack specific allegations and concise factual statements supporting the
allegations. The Agreements seek to resolve liability for every possible federally-enforccable
duty related to air emissions without a single factual allcpation that emissions levels at the
twenty Respondent AFOs exceed applicable thresholds. That factual comerstone will not exist
until several years after the Board issues these orders.

Section 22.18(b}(2) of Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations requives that, when
EPA proceeds with a consent agreemnent pursuant te section 22.13{b}, “the consent agreement

shall also contain the elements deseribed at § 22.14(a){(13-(3) and (8).” 40 CF.R. § 22,1%(b}2).
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Under section 22,1 4{a}, a consent agreement and final order must contain, inter alia, a “specific
reference” to each provision of law which EPA alleges an operation violated and a “concise
statement of the factual basis for each violation alleged.™ See 40 C.F.R. § 22.14a}(2)-(3). In
other words, the regulations requite QAQPS to plead specific violations supporied by facts.
Instead, QAQPS has only pled general violations of State Implementation Plan requirements and
does not allege any emissions sufficient to trigger liability.

A, The Agreements Fail to Allege Specific State Implementation Plan
Requirements that AFOs Vislate,

The Agreements, however, fail to make specific allegations based upon violations of
particular statutory sections. The Agreements allege violations of the Clean Air Act permit
proprams, emissions reporting requirements in CERCLA and EPCRA, and *any other federally
cnforceable State Implementation Plan requirements for major or minor sources based on
quantity rates, or concentrations of air emissions.” Air Compliance Agreement § 26{A), 70 Fed.
Reg. 4963, The general reference to the fifty-five State Implementation Plans approved by EPA
fails to satisfy the requircment that the Agreements include “specific reference” to each
applicable provision of faw, See 40 C.FR, § 22.14(a)2). Thousands of EPA actions that
approve various rules, plans, and plan amendments collectively comprise the fifty-five State
Implementation Plans incorporated by reference in the Pant 52 of the Code of Federal
Regulations. Sce 40 C.F.R. part 52, Subparis B — FFF. Alleging violations of “any other
requirements” found in these plang lacks the specificity mandated by the Consolidated Rules of
Practice and fails to provide a clear public record of the enforcement proceeding. 40 C.ER. §

22.14(a)2}; 63 Fed. Reg. 9464, 9471 {Feb. 25, 1998).
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B. The Agrecements Fail to Allege Emissions to Establish Liability.

Instead of alleging particularized facts that establish violations of gpecific requirements,
the Agrcement purports to resolve “civil liability for certain potential violations . . . identified
and quantified by applying the Emissions-Estimating Methodologies developed nsing data from
the national air cmissions moniforing study.” Air Compliance Agreemcnt, § 4 (70 Fed, Reg.
4958, 4962) (emphasis added). OAQPS acknowledges that it lacks a factual basis to support
mdividual violations, noting that “[t]he monitoring study will lead to the development of
methodologies for estimating cmissions from AFOs and will help AFOs to determine and
comply with their regulatory responsibilities under the Clean Air Act {CAA); the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act {CERCLA); and the Emergency
Planning and Community Right to Know Act (EPCRA).” 70 Fed. Reg. 4958,

The Air Compliance Agreement does not allege that emissions at a participating facility
exceed various thresholds that trigger permit obligations or reporting requirements.” Indeed,
only after QAQPS develops emission estimating methodologies will a participating facility be
required to submit required permit applications and emissions reports or selfcertify the
inapplicability of the Clean Air Act, CERCLA, or EPCRA. Air Compliance Agreement, ¥ 28(C)

(70 Fed. Reg. 4964). If all goes as QAQPS plans, more than three years will pass between

* For example, a source must get a pennit required by Part C of Title I when the potential to emit
exceeds 250 tons per year of any pollutant. 42 ULS.C. § 7479(a}. Pemmits required by Part I} of
Title I have various thresholds based on the pollutant and the severity of the air pollution
problem in the area. See 42 U.5.C. § 751 ta{c) {threshold of 50 tons per year in a setious ozone
nonattainment area); § 751 la(d) (threshold of 25 tons per year in a severe ozone nopattainment
ared); § 751 La(e} (threshold of 10 tons per year in a extreme ozene nonattainment grea); §
7513a(b)(3) (threshold of 70 tons per year in a serious PMI 0 nonattainment area}, Since
QAQPS does not specifically ailege State Implementation Plan requirements, emissions
thresholds for those generally pled allegations are not known.
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execution of the Agrecment and facts showing that the law has becn violated. Sec 70 Fed. Reg.
4059, 4964,

C. OAQPS Fails to Justify the Usc of Potential Violations.

OAQPS contradicts itself by argning the need for the Agreement and the sufficiency of
allegations. On one hand, OAQPS claims that the “allegations support civil liability presently,
and do not depend on the results of the national emissions monitoring study, in that each
Respondent currently owns or operates a source or facility that emits regulated pollutants in
amounts that may exceed the regulatory thresholds[.]” ©CQAQPS Supplemental Brief at 14
(emphasis added). On the other hand, OAQPS crafted the Agreement as “the most effective
means for EPA to respond to the crucial data needs identificd by the [National Academy of
Sctences], and to determine the compliance status of thousands of AFOs.” Id. at 3. The
Consolidated Rules of Practice do not allow OAQPS to procesd with an enforcement action
based on potential violations; absent from the language of sections 22,14{a}2) and {a)(3) is the
term “potential” when referring fo “viclation.”

Without any support form the Consolidated Rules of Practice, OAQPS cites two Board
decigions for the proposition that “potential” violations may properly be pled in a Consent

Agreement. Sge In the Matter of Advance Auto Parts, Inc., Advance Stores Company, Western

Auto Supply Company, Discount Auto Parts. Inc., Docket No. HQ-2004-6001 (EAB, Aug. 5,

20043, 2004 EPA App. LEXIS 46; In the Matter of ADT Security Services, Ine., Docket No.

CWA-HQ-2002-6000, EPCRA-HQ-2002-6060 (EAB, Oct. 18, 2002). Thesc cases both approve
consent agrecments EPA issued for violations disclosed pursuant to the “Aundit Policy™ and do

not support EPA’s atterapt to create a “potential” violation doctrine here.
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EPA crafted the Audit Policy to encourage the self-disclosure and correction of
environmental violations in exchange for reduced penaltics. See geperally 60 Fed, Reg. 66706
{Dec. 22, 1995). The Audit Policy waives gravity-based penalties for violations as a result of
voluntary audits and reduces penalties that are voluntarily disclosed when not found through an
audit. In order to come within the policy, the regulated entity must {1} discover violations
through an environmental audit or due diligence; {2) voluntarily disclose violations; (3) disclosc
violations within 10 days of discovery, or less if required by law; {4) discover violations
independent of government or third party; {5} expediticusiy correct and remedy harm cavsed by
the violation; (6) agree to prevent recurrence; (7) not have previously viclated the requirement at
issue; {8) demonstrate that conduct does not result in serious actual harm or present an imminent
and substantial endangerment to public health or the environment; and (9) cooperate with EPA.
See 60 Fod. Reg. 607006, 66711-66712 (Dec. 22, 1994),

In Advance Autc Parts, the Board resolved liability for violations that the respondents

identified and corrected before the Board issued the order. Advance Auto Parts at 5. Here, the

AFOs do not identify the emissions of pellutants that would trigger liability under the Clean Air
Act, CERCLA, EPCRA, or applicable State Implementation Plan requirements in their
respective states.” Nor will the AFOs correct violations before the Board issues this order; the

AFDs will correct violations, if any, years in the future. Thus, Advance Auto Parts does not

support EPA’s authority to resolve “potential” violations alleged in these Agreements.

In addition, EPA’s public notices of the Advance Auto Parts and ADT Sceurity Services

consent agreements describe only actuat violations. A close review of each Federal Register
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notice reveals that EPA provided public notice of numerous violations, not potential violations,
disclosed under the Audit Policy. 69 Fed. Reg. 22797 (Apr. 27, 2004); 67 Fed, Reg. 76754 {Dec.

13, 2002).
The Agreements do not comport with other components of the Audit Policy, including a

demonstration that the violations do not resulf in an imminent and substantial endangerment to

public health, rendering Advance Auto Parts and ADT Secwrity Services inapposite to the
Agrecments at issue here.

QAQPS also arpues that the purpose of the allegations required for a consent agreement
and final order is to ¢reate a “clear public record™ and that QAQPS has done so here, QAQPS
Supplemental Brief at 17. To the contrary, OAQPS has thwarted the geal of providing public
disclosure: the agency has brokered a deal that resolves violations without allegations of
emissions levels, concentrations, or rates to establish liability. The Agrecements do not comport
with the goals of the Consolidated Rulcs of Practice because there is no public record of the
factual basis ynderiving alleged violations of emissions-based requirements.

The Agreements lack the specific legal allegations supported by site-specific facts
necessary for an enforcement action under the Consolidated Rules of Practice, and instead seek
to resolve 8 prospectively broad policy question by “bring[ing] the entire AFO industry into
compliance with the CAA, section 103 of CERCLA, and section 304 of EPCRA.” 70 Fed. Reg.

4961,

" Specific applicable SIPs include California, Indiana, [owa, Kansas, Kentucky, Michigan,
Minnesota, Nebraska, New York, North Carolina, and Ohio. See 40 C.F R. part 52, Subparts F,
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[I. THE AGREEMENTS VIOLATE THE CLEAN AIR ACT

Whether the Board views the Agreements as Administrative Penalty Orders or
Administrative Compliance Orders, the Agreements violate the Clean Air Act by exceeding the
12-month penalty period in section 113{d}(1) and the one-year compliance deadline in section
113{a)(4}, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7413 {a){4) and (d){1).

The Agreements violate the civil penalty limits of section 113{d){1) of the Clean Air Act.
Unless ERA obtaing conzent from the Attorney General, it may not issue ¢ivil penalties for a
period greater than 12 months.

The Adininistrator’s authority under this paragraph shal} be limited to matters

where the total penalty sought does not exceed $200,000 and the first alleped date

of violation oceurred no more than 12 months prior to the initiation of the

administrative action, except where the Admimstrator and the Attorney General

jointly determine that a matter involving a larger penalty amouiit or ionger period

of violation is appropriate for administrative penalty action,
42 U.8.C. § 7413{d)(1). Here, the Agreements Fail to allege the dates on which the Respondent
AFOs began the so-called potential violations or establish the period for which civil penalties
have been assessed. Based on an unspecified and unknown duration of past violations, followed
by a two-year monitoring period and OAQPS’s eighteen month development of the Emission-
Estimating Mecthodologies, the Agreements apparcntly assess civil penalties for several years”
worth of past and future violations. Despite this, there has been no determination by the Attorney
(Feneral that the penalties should be assessed for more than |2 months.

The Agreements also violate the compliance deadline in section 13(a}{4) of the Clean

Air Act. An Administrative Compliance Order must require “the persou to whom it [is] issued to

comply with the requirement as expeditiously as practicable, but in no event longer than one year

P, R, 5, X, Y, CC, HH, Ii, and KK.
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after the date the order [is] issued.™ 42 U.S.C. § 7413(a)4). Provided the subsequent
application of the Emissions-Estimating Methodologies reveals violations, then Respondent
AFQOs must report emissions under CERCLA and EPCRA, apply for permits, and/or install
pollution control technology, Air Compliance Agrecment § 28. Under this scheme, three to four
vears will pass between the issuance of these proposed orders and the determination of cinissions
levels. Because compliance will not occur within one year of any order, the Agreements violate
section 113{a){4}.

III. THE AGREEMENTS VIOLATE STATUTORY PENALTY REQUIREMENTS
AND DO NOT COMFPORT WITH EPA’S PENALTY POLICIES

Penaltics under the Agreements — which range from $200 to $1,000 depending on the
size of the AFQ — violate the Clean Air Act, CERCLA, and EPCRA penalty provisions as well
as applicable administrative penalty policies.® The Clean Air Act requires consideration of “the
size of the business, the economic impact of the penalty on the business, the violator’s full
compliance history and good faith cfforts to comply, the duration of the violation ..., payment by
the violator of penalties previcusly assessed for the same violation, the economie benefit of
noncompliance, and the scricusness of the violation” in assessing penalties. 421U.5.C. §
7413{e}1). Similarly, CERCLA and EPCRA require that the penalty amount take into account
“the nature, circumstances, extent and gravity of the violations and, with respect to the violator,
ability to pay, any prior history of such violatious, the degree of culpability, economic benefit or
savings {if any) resulting from the violation, and such other matters as justice may require,” 42

U.S.C. § 9609(a)}(3) (CERCLAY, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(b)(1XC) (EPCRA),

¥ See Air Compliance Apreement, 148 {imposing penalties from $200 to $1000 according to the
size of the AFQ, and capping penalties at £10,000 to $100,000 according to the number of AFOs
per respondent).
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EP A developed penalty policies to implement these statutory criteria and ensure
consistent assessments of penalties. The Clean Air Act Stationary Source Civil Penalty Policy
{(“Clean Air Act Penalty Policy™) and the Enfercement Response Policy for Sections 304, 311
and 312 of the Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act and Section 103 of the
Comprehensive Envirommental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (“CERCLA/EPCRA
Penalty Policy™} set forth the procedures for assessing penaltics under these statutes. Both
penalty policies provide methods for caleulating a base penalty, and then allow for cortain
maodifications (additions and/or deductions) to be made to the basc penalty according to specified
factors. For example, under the Clean Air Act penalty policy, the penalty amount is determined
by ¢ombining the cconomic benefit of the noncompliance with the serionsness of the violation
and adjusting the combined amount based upon identified factors. Sce Clean Air Act Penalty
Policy, Scct. L

A, The Penaltics Fail to Reconp Economic Benefit,

In assessing penalties under the Agreements, OAQPS essentially ignored the statutory
penalty assessment criteria and EPA’s penalty policies. Most glaringly, the Air Compliance
Agreement fails to recoup any of the economic benefit associated with noncompliance,
Recovery of cconomic benefit is central to the penalty determination, and the Clean Air Act and
CERCLA/EPCRA penalty policies demand that the penalty assessed at least equal the ceconomic
benefit gained through noncompliance. See Clean Air Act Penalty Policy, Sect. Il (noting that
“any penalty should, at a minimumn, remove any significant economic benefit resuiting from
noncompliance™}, CERCLA/EPCRA Penalty Policy (explaining that “[wlhenever there {s an

economic incentive to violate the law, it encourages noncompliance and thus weakens EPPA's
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ability to implement the Aets and protect human health and the environment. The violator
should not benefit from its violative acts™),

Instead of structuring the Air Compliance Agreement penalties to recoup the economic
benefit, QAQPS arbitrarily assumed an ccongmic benefit of zero. See OAQPS Supplemental
Brief at 4 (stating that “{blecause control technologies are currently in development, the delayed
or avoided costs of the alleged violations are not possible to caleulate™). Thus, OAQPS violated
the penalty policies and ignored readily available information on the cost of compliance. For
example, the CERCLA/EPCRA penalty policy provides a tutalfcﬂst of compliance for CERCLA
and EPCRA reporting of $703 for each viclation of the statutory reporting requirements. Sce
CERCLAEPCRA Penalty Policy at 29, Table ITI, QAQPS should have at least recovercd a
minimum of $1,406 from each participating AFO to reflect this cost savings associated with the
violations of the CERCLA and EPCRA reporting requitements.

In addition, the Air Compliance Agrcement fails to recovery economic benefit associated
with delayed monitoring costs and failure to install appropriate pollution controls. The Clean Air
Act Penalty Policy recognizes that delaying monitoring and installation of pollution controls
generates an economic benefit, and requires that the penalty imposed reflect these savings. See
Clean Air Act Penalty Policy, Sect. II.A (noting the economic benefit associated with delayed
monitoring and failure to install pollution controls). Inexcusably, OECA ignored readily
available information approximating these costs, such as the cost of the proposed monitoring

prngramg as well as EPA’s AgStar prﬂgrarnm, and blithely assumed the economic benefit to be

*See Air Compliance Agreement, § 53(a) (requiring payment of $2,500 per farm or the
resporndents pro rata share),
* See EPA’s AgStar Program, hitp/fwww.cpa.goviagstar (providing cost information on
anzerobic digestion systems for AFOs).
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zero, OAQPS’s assumption is untenable, especially in light of the penalty policies’ requirement
that “the economic benefit of noncompliance ... should be calculated under this penalty policy
using the most aggressive assumptions supportable.”"" Clean Air Act Penalty Policy, Sect, 1.

B. The Penalties are Inconsistent with EPA’s Penalty Policics.

Moreover, even a superficial application of the penalty policies reveals the gross
inadequacy of the penalties imposed by the Air Compliance Agreement. The Clean Air Act
Penalty Policy provides for a minimum penalty of $15,000 for failure to obtain an operating
permit, instal] and operate control equipment, or install required monitoring equipment. Scc
Clean Air Act Penalty Policy, Scct. ILB.2. In addition, the CERCLA/EPCRA Penalty Policy
requires a minimum penalty of $6,251 for failure to report releases under CERCLA § {03 and
EPCRA § 304, See CERCLA/EPFCRA Penalty Policy at 19, Table [ Theretore, the combined
minimum penalty for each day of violation is $21,251, almost forty-three times the average total
$300 penalty asscssed for the unknown number of years of past and fiture viclations covered by
the Agreements.'?

EPA docs have the guthority to adjust the penaltics based upon various factors, including
ability to pay and litigation risk, but it is required to document its rationale for the deviation from
the penalty policy. See Clean Air Act Penglty Policy, Sect. [IL-1V,, CERCLA/EPCRA Penalty
Policy at 24. OAQPS argues here, without any pricr documentation, that the penalties imposed

are appropriate given the ability of AFQs to pay, litigation risks, and other factors as justice may

"' OECA appears not to have taken even the first step in determining economic benefit, applying
“BEN,” an EPA ¢omputer model designed to determine economic benefit.
2 This minimum penalty does not even take into account the economic benefit of noncompliance
as well as the other relevant criteria such as the level of violation, toxicity of the pollutant,
seositivity of the environment, length of time of violation, or size of the violator, Seg Clean Air
Act Penalty Policy, Sect. 11.B.
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require. See OAQPS Supplemental Brief at 19-24. OAQPS’s post hoc rationalizations,
however, do not justify its extreme deviation from the statutory penalty provisions and applicabie
penalty policies."

The Clean Air Act and CERCLA/EPCRA penalty policics require fact-gpecific, case-by-
case, writien justifications for any deviations from the penalty policies. See Clean Air Act
Penalty Policy, Sect.ILB.4 (stating that “[t]he litigation tcam {s required to base any adjustment
of the gravity component on the factors mentioned and to carefully document the reasons
justifying its application in the particular case™); CERCLA/EPCRA Penalty Policy at 3, 0, 2
{noting that “[alny deviation from this Policy should be documented in the case file™). QAQPS
made no such effort to provide the necessary justifications, and in fact, foreclosed such findings
by establishing a penalty structure before any individual AFQOs had signed up for the deal. For
example, the CERCLA/EPCRA penalty policies requires the respondent to demonstrate its
inability to pay by providing supporting information, incinding tax returns, financial audits, lean
applications, and annwal or quarterly reports, See CERCLA/EPCRA Penalty Policy at 24-25; sce
alzo Clean Air Act Penalty Policy, Sect. IV (noting that “[i]f the violator fails to provide
sufficient information [supporting its inability to pay], then the litigation team should disregard
this factor in adjusting the penalty” and instructing to “[c)onsider straight penalty reductions as a

last recourse™). But since OAQPS had established the penalty schedule before any individual

¥ AIR notes that OAQPS seems to misunderstand the compliance history aspects of the penalty
policies when it argues that lack of prior violations supports a penalty reduction. See QAQPS
Supplemental Memorandum at 20-21. The Clean Air Act Penalty Policy makes clear that
compliance history “may be used only to raise a penaity,” Clean Air Act Penalty Policy,
Sect.ILB 4.c
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party had signed up for the agreement, it could not possibly have bad the case-specific
information needed to justity any deviation based upon ahility to pay.'?

As the Board noted in oral argument, the “Bakery Partnership Agreement” was an
industry-wide enforcement action brought under the Audit Policy that imposed penalties
according to a fixed structure and thus shares some commen elements with the Agreenents. '
While the Agreements here applied penalties to unknown participants based solely on facility
size, the Bakery Partnership Agreement made a good faith effort to apply the penalty policies.
Most importantly, the Bakery Partnership Agreement took into account facility-specific
differences by imposing “per pound penaities” based upon case-by-case evaluations of specific
facilities, and varying penalty amounts according to the guantitics released. Sec 67 Fed. Reg.
5586, 5389 (February 6, 2002). Unlike the Air Compliance Agreement which imposes $200,
$500, or $1,000 penalties based upon nothing more than arbitrary facility sizes detived from
regulations implementing the Clean Water Act, the Bakery Partnership Agreement sought to
capture penalties that tracked more closely the particulars of each facility,'®

QAQPS argues that the penaltics are appropriate given the risk of proceeding with
litigation. However, as QAQPS itself makes ¢lear in its supplemental memorandum, “[fledcral
couits have also acknowledged that the CAA, CERCLA, and EPCRA arc applicable to AFOs if

their cmissions exceed the statutory thresholds.” OAQPS Supplemental Brief at 15-16 citing

M OAQPS appears not to have applied “ABEL,” an EPA computer model designed to determine
ability to pay.

¥ 8¢e Equipment Containing Ozone Depleting Substances at Industrial Bakeries, 67 Fed, Reg.
5586 {February 6, 2002).

'* In addition, ATR is unaware of the contents of the administrative record underlying the Bakery
Partnership Agreement, and notes that it is entircly possible that EP A made specific findings
regarding the penalty amounts. In this case, OAQPS has not provided any specific justifications,
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Idaho Conservation Leaguee v. Adrian Boer, dba K&W Dairy, 362 F.Supp.2d 1211, 1216 {D.

Idaho 2004} Sierra Club v. Tyson Foods, Ine., 299 F.Supp.2d 693, 706-11 {W.D. Ky. 2003);

Sierra Club v. Seaboard Farms, Ine., 387 F.2d 1167, 1171-72 (10" Cir. 2004), Instead, OAQPS

argues that there is a high litigation risk because “precise proof in support of civil liability {s not
currently possible.” OAQPS Supplemental Memorandum at 16. While evidentiary risk may
justify a penalty reduction, “[mn]itigation based on the coneerns should consider the specific
facts, eguities, evidentiary issues or legal problems pertaining to a particular case.” Clean Air
Act Penalty Policy, Sect, III {(emphasis added). QAQPS has made no such case-by-caze
determination, and has instead reduced penalties for an entire industry sector by at lcast 98%
based upon & general assumption that the cases will be difficult to prove."”

in conclusion, the inadequacy of the penalties is perhaps best summarized by the
following fact: Tyson Foods, Inc., a multinational company that enjoyed $26.4 billion in sales
and realized $1.9 billion in gross profits in 2004, is required to pay no more than $100,000 in
penalties under the Air Compliance Agreement for regularly occurring violations at hundreds, if
not thousands, of facilities that lie at the heart of its business."” Given its paltry penalty amount,
failure to recover any economic bencfit, and marked departure from the statutory penalty
provisions and administrative penalty policies, the Board should not allow the Air Compliance

Agreement to stand.

other than its post hoc litigation raticnalizations, to sapport penalty amounts under the Ait
Compliance Agreement.
'7 A compatison of the average total penalty amount ($500) to the minimum amount under the

enalty policics ($21,251) reveais an overall penalty reduction of at least 98%.

¥ Qee Tyson Foods Annual Repott, hitp;/Anedia.corporate-
ir.net/media_files/trol/65/65476/reports/ar04. pdf.
' The Air Compliance Agreement caps the total penalty paid by any respondent at $100,000.
See Air Compliance Agreement, § 48(C).

BRIEF OF ASSOCIATION OF IRRITATED RESIDENTS, £7.4L N OFPOSITION 10 PROPOSED CAFOS

17




IV. THE BOARD HAS JURISDICTION TO REVIEW THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT

In its supplemental brief and at oral argument, OAQPS takes the position that the Board
only has jurisdiction to review the penalty component of the Agreements, Under the
Consolidated Rules of Practice, the Board has a broad grant of jurisdiction to review the entirc
consent agreement. Section 22.18(b}{(3) provides that no “consent agreement shall disposc of
any proceeding under these Consolidated Rules of Practice without a final order from the . . .
Environmental Appeals Board, ratifying the parties’ consent agreement.” Therefore, the Board’s
role in this process involves ari order that will either ratify or not ratify the Agreements.

OAQPS’s position that the consent agreement may contain clements beyond the Board’s
reach runs counter to the Consolidated Rules of Practice, which mandates that all terms be
rccorded in a consent agreement subject to Board ratification. “Any and all terms and conditions
of a settlement agreement shall be recorded in a written consent agreement[.]” 40 CFR. §
22.18(b)2) {stating mandatory elements of a consent agreement). Because the Consolidated
Rules of Practice define the content of a consent agreement and provide the Board with
jurisdiction to ratify consent agreements, OAQPS cannct push the Board aside with clever
draftsmanship. The Board has jurisdiction over “any and all tenms™ through its ratification
power, 40 C.ER. §§ 22.18(b)(2}, (3).

CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth above, AIR respectfully requests that the Board decline to ratify
the Agrecments. In the event the Board ratifies the Agreements, AIR requests that the Board
declare that the Agreentents shall not affect the ability of citizens or states to enforce federally-

enforceable requirements applicable to Respondents.
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g{/ﬂ iz

BRENT NEWELL, CA Bar No, 210,312
LUKE W, COLE, CA Bar No, 145,505
Center on Race, Poverty & the Environment
450 Geary Strect, Suite 500

San Francisco, CA 94102

{415) 346-4179

(415) 346-8723 fax

Attorneys for Association of Irritated Residents and Iowa
Citizens for Community Improvement

DAVID BOOKBINDER
DC Bar No. 45525
Sierra Club

408 C Street, NE
Washington, DC 20002
{2012) 548-4598

{(202) 547-600%

BARCLAY ROGERS

AR Bar No., 2002050
Fogleman & Rogers

123 West Broadway

West Memphis, AR 72303
{870} 735-1900

{870) 735-1662 fax

Attorneys for Community Association for Restoration of
the Environment, Environmental Integrity Project, and
Sierra Club

BEIEF OF ASSOCIATION OF IRRITATED RESIDENTS, £7 AL ¥ OFFOSITION 14 PROPOSED CAFOS
19



ANGEL M. LATTERELL
MN Bar Mo, 326070
11326 34™ Ave NE
Seattle, WA 98125

{612) 747-7033

(484) 931-6363

Attorney for Clean Water Action Alliance
of Minnesota

BERIEF OF ASS0CIATION OF IRRITATED RESIDENTS, AT AL, IN OPPOSITION TO PROPOSED CAFOS
20
&



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[, Brent Newell, am a resident of the state of California, over the age
of eighteen years, and not a party to this action. My business address is 450
Geary Street, Suite 500, San Francisco, CA 94102.

On December 19, 2005, 1 served the BRIEF OF ASSOCIATION OF
IRRITATED RESIDENTS, et al. IN OFPOSITION TO THE CONSENT
AGREEMENTS AND PROPOSED FINAL ORDERS FOR ANIMAL
FEEDING OPERATIONS on the following persons by placing it in a
sealed, postage-paid envelope to be sent through the U.S. mails in the
regular course of business:

Robert Kaplan

Bruce Fergusson

Special Litigation and Projects Division
Office of Civil Enforcement (2248-A)

U.5. EPA Headquarters, Ariel Rios Building
1200 Pennsylvania Ave, NW

Washington, D.C, 20460

Richard Schwartz

Kirsten Nathenson

Crowell & Moring, LLP

1001 Pennsylvania Ave,, NW
Washington, D.C. 20004

Lee Poeppe

P & W Eggs
2313 Hilltop
Anita, TA 50020

Steven A, Nichols
MCM Pouitry Farm
5611 Peck Road
Arcadia, CA 91006




Mike Osterholt
Water Works
2104 E 300 South
Portland, IN 47371

Kim Wendel

Bob Wendel & Son’s Poultry
14830 Cechran Road

New Weston, OH 45348

K-Brand Farms

715 Glen Wild Road
P.O.Box 119
Woodridge, NY 12789

Henningsen Foods, Inc.
Shell Egg Division

851 Third Street

P.O. Box 70

David City, NE 68632

Ronald Evans

E & S Swine, Inc,

2492 Mobleys Bridge Road
Grimesland, NC 27837

Center Fresh Egg Farm, LLP
546 9™ Avenue Bast
Oskaloosa, [A 52577




Steven C. Badgett

Badgett Enterprises LTD

743 Mercer Darke County Line Road
Ft. Recovery, OH 45846

Eennartz Farms
3178 St. Peter Road
Ft. Recovery, OH 45846

Greg B. Nelson
8690 Quail Circle
Manhattan, KS 66502

Fairway Farms
328 Monterey Road
Frankhn, KY 42134

VWilliam Brenton
Brenton Brothers, Inc,
P.O. Box 190

Dalles Center, 1A 50063

Russell Roe

Roe Farms, Inc.
72368 110" Street
FLeRoy, MN 55951

Terry Finnerty
10347 W. SR 26
Dunkirk, IN 47336

Jerry & Ruth Warren
6873 E. 625N
Union City, TN 47390




Kenneth Carroll

C & C Farms

4201 Hayes Mill Road
Godwin, NC 28344

Williamson Swine Farms
1325 Lisbon Street
Clinton, NC 28328

James A. Zoltenko
RR1, Box 106
Courtland, K8 66939

Kober Farms LLC
8990 Peach Ridge
Sparta, MI 49345

[ declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct
and that this Proof of Service was executed this 19th day of December 2003,

in San Francisco. @W

Br@t Newelf







e e R L M o e = e

Documents detail lobbyists' impact on air-quality plan

By andraw Martin
Washington Bureau

May 16, 2004

WASHINGTON -- When Environmental Protection Agency
officialz addressed the National Pork Producers Couhcil
last year about a proposed farm-pollution monitering
program, they brought along a sglide show teo explain and
promote the new rules.

Although the audience had no way of knowing it, the slide
show was preparsed not just by EPA staff but largely by the
meat industry, which backed the new rules over the
objections of environmentaliasts.

Internal EPA documents show that the proposed program to
montitor air pollution at livestock farms--a contentious
topie in rural America--was largely conceived and heavily
influenced by lobbyists for the livesteock industry. The
program ig to be officially unveiled in coming months.

The documents also show a relationship between some BPA
officials and industry lobbyists that was s clome that one
EPA official working on farm issues quit in frustrationm,
and state and local government reprezentatives walked out
of negotiations. '

"Toe save you sowe time, X've taken the liberty of drafting
a few PowerPoint slides that you might use in that
presentation, " livestock industry lobbyist John Thorne
wrote in a Feb, 15, 2003, e-mail to then-EP2 attorney
Timothy Jones.

In an e-mail on Fel. 18, 2003, Thornes sént a gecond sst of
glides to be used by EPA Associate Adminigtrator Karen
Flournoy that conciudes, "The public will benefit from all
of this."



[——

Octher documents show that Jones incorporated some of

Thorne's slides into his presentation, while Flournoy used
essentially the whale thing,

The e-mail messages are contained in hundreds of pages of
documents obtained by the Sierra Club under the Freedom of
Information Act and provided to the Tribune.,

Some of the messages show regulators and the regqulated
esgentially working hand in hand., For instance, in a Feb.
12, 2003, e&-mail, Randy Waite of the EPA's Office of Air
fuality Planning and Standarde praised Thorne's slides and
offered strategic suggestions to help the industry make its
cage.

"With good information, we can solve problems," Waite
wrote. "With no information, we leave the door open to

outside gcare tacticg,n

Critics of the Bush administration contend that this is
just the latest example of the Bush EFA becoming overly
cloge with industry.

EPA officials do not dispute their close working
relationship with the meat industry. But they maintain they
have jointly created the firast-ever program to monitor air
pollution from farms, pald for by the livestock industry,

"It's true that we've been talking to the industry," said
Bob Kaplan, the EPA's director of special litigatiocn and
projects. 'But we've also been talking to environmental
groups and anyone else who wants to say anything to us.®

Plan coffers protection

Still, criticg call the air emissions program a sweetheart
deal that indefinitely delays cleanup of noxicus emissiona
from large-scale farms and disregards neighbore who live
downwind,

Under the propesed deal, farms that sign up for a two-vear
monitoring program will be exempt from federal air
polluticon enforcement during that time. Past violatiens of
federal air pollution laws alse would be forgiven.



Industry offieiale hope the program also would shield
participating farms from lawsuits brought by states and

gitizen groups.

In exchange, the farms woulid contribute up to $3,500 to
cover the cost of the program. Only about 30 farms would be
gelected for monitoring, documents show.

The idea i8 that after two vears, the EPA would have
sufficient data to establish pexmanent alr emissions

atandards.

The EPA is preparing the program at a time when the atench
and noxious gases from large-scale livestock farms, often
called "factory farmg," are Learing apart some rural
communities and prompting lawsuits by neighbors and
environmental groups,

The furor has been fueled by rapid consclidation in the
livestock industry that has vastly reduced the number of
farms but greatly increased the zizge of those that remain.
Some of the largest pig farms, for instange, have more than

100,000 hogs,

While the primary complaint iam foul cdors, some neighbors
and scientists maintain that gases such as ammonia and
hyvdrogen sulfide--emitted from manure--from livestock farms
have cauged health problems similar to those caused by
industrial emissions.

To environmental groups, the monitoring plan, as proposed,
ig simply amnesty for polluters,

Everyone let “off the hook!

“The? let everyone off the hook,” maid Barclay Rogers, an
attorney with the Sierra Club. "Everyone who signs up gets
protection. It's a “get out of jail free' card.™

Asked about the slide show prepared by Thorne and presented
by EPA officials, Rogers said: "That is being co-opted to
the greatest extent the government c¢an be, They are putting
words in their mouth.”

The EBPA's Waite countered that the slides summarized talks




he had with Thorne and that he edited them for accuracy.

Bric Schaeffer, a Lormer EPA enforcement official who now
ia director of the Environmental Integrity Project, a
Washington-hased watchdog group, =aid the agreement was
gimply a stalling tactic by the livestock industry.

"Industry lobbyiste in Washington understand they can't
defeak emission controls outright, especially where the
public's health is at stake," Schaeffer said. "But they
understand that time iz money, so their strategy iz to

postpone the day of reckoning.™

But Kaplan, the EFA's director of special litigation and
projecta, said the agency is "between a rock and a hard
place” because the current lawe and protocols for measuring
pollution are difficult to apply to farms. The main point
of the monitoring program, he said, is to establish
emiszions standards with which farms would have to comply.

"We are trying to do this in a faster, more judiciocus way,"
he =said.

Jones, the then-EPA lawyer who received one of Thorne's e-
mail messages and now works for Tyson foods, declined to
comment . Neither Flournoy nor Thorne returned calls zeeking

comment .

Richard Schwartz, a leobbyist for a consortium of livestock
companies called the Ag Air Group, said the livestock
industry did not have toc much influence on the processz,
adding the most recent draft is much tougher on farms than
the original proposal.

“Easentially the ldea of the industry paying to do a study
to determine its own emissions is absolutely unigue,n
Schwartz said. "It's tremendously advantageous to the

agenoy. "

To date, the EPA's focus when it comes to factory farms has
mostly been water pollution. During the Clinton
administration, the EPA pursued its first air pollution
caseg, against Premium Standard Farms in Migsouri and
Buckeye Egg Farm in Chio,




In Becember 2001, & month after Premium Standard FParms was
ordered to install a wastewater treatment facility, the

meat industry came to the EFA to pitech the idea for a two-
tiered "safe harbor" agreement,

Under that proposal, the EFA would have imposed a
moratorium on enforcing the Clean Air ZAck and other air
pollution laws as long as the large livestock farmsz =zigned
up for a program to monitor emissions. Smaller farms would
be exempt from requlation altogether,

EPA officilials initially rejected the idea.

"We felt that what they were trying to do was keep us from
enforcing the law," said Sylvia Lowrance, who at the time
wag the deputy administrator for enforcement.

But Lowrance said the tone in EPA enforcement changed in
the courge the Bush administration took toward not
supporting enforcement of environmental laws. Lowrance said
ghe was told that her office could not pursue any more air
pollution cases against farms unless genior political
appointees in the EPA approved it.

"That'a unprecedented in EPA," sald Lowrance, who left the
agency in 2002,

Michele Merkel, who worked in ERPA enforcement, said she
also quit in 2002 bécause she believed the livestock
industry had too much influence on federal oversight of
farms, '

The meat industry's "safe harbor" proposal picked up steam
within the EPA in 2002,

"Based on what we'wve learned so far, my feeling is the EPA
still wants to move forward with this and probably will, "
Schwartz wrote to fellow lcbbyist Thorne on March 1%, 2002,

Twe organizations representing state and local officials--
the State and Territorial Ailr Pollution Program
Bdminigstrators and the Association of Local Air Pollution
Control Officials--were invited to participate in meetings
of the EPA and industry officials that summer. But by thea
end of the vear, the organizations walked out.




"It appeared to us that the EPA staff was giving in far too
much to the industry, and the direction was coming from
somewhere in the administration to seal the deal,” =aid
Bill Becker, executive directorxr of bhoth organizations.

By the time EPA officilals were invited to address the
National Pork Producers Courlcil--in meetings in Kansas
City, Mo., and Washington, D.C., in early 2003--the
livestock industry had provided a "congent agreement and
final order" that included legal language for the
monitoring program,

Signa of partnership

In szome of the documents, government officials sound as
though they conasider themszelvez esgentially partners with
industry representatives--arrayed against, for example,
citizenz who want to file lawazuits.

In one e-mail, Waite of the EPA's Q0ffice of Alr Quality
Planning and Standards wrote, "We need to start getting
acroga the idea that farms are going to continue to be
vulnerable to citizen guits and this data will go a long
way in helping us, in parxtnership, to find solutionsa to
some of those issues, making them less vulnerable in the
leng run. ™

In an interview, Waite said protection from lawsuits is
cruclial to get farmers to participate in the program,

"There's got to be something in it for both szidez, " he
said.

Copyright {c} 2004, Chicago Tribune
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Improved archives!

Searching Chicagotribune.com archives back to 1985 is
cheaper and easier than ever. New prices for multiple
articles can bring your cost down to as low as 20 cents an
article: http://www.chicagotribune.com/archives
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- Funding the Study

- Each species funds its own study portion
Pork = $6 million (check off funds)
Dairy = $5 million (check off funds)
« Eggs = $2.8 million (check off funds)
« Broilers = $1.8 million (industry leaders’ funds)

» Contingency funds are built into each budget
= |nsurance protects against loss, liability
= Purdue’s business office manages accounts
= Multiple layers of accounting, oversight,

approvals, independent audits & reports to
EPA, USDA, AARC and others
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Study Measurements

Regulated poliutants measured: VOCs, NH,,
H,S, TSP, Particulate Matter (PM,,, PM, ;)

- Meta data collected: various climate variables,
management & animal data, QA/QC data

= All sites: SOPs will be followed by all teams

= Portable equipment will monitor lagoon
emissions & open-sided dairy barns;
Stationary field labs will monitor barns

= otudy designs represent major regions, farm
) --_.m.__mmm.mrm..o,.aco:o: B.mﬁ:oam for mmos mvmommfm




Conduct of the Study
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AARC administers funds
and transfers to Purdue
according to approved
budgets. Board of
directors represents each
industry sector. AARC is
legal entity before EPA,
holds titles to mobile labs,
lets contracts, audits
expenses and budgets,
and coordinates
equipment use for later
studies.

- New Air Policy

in 2010 or 2011

p——, —_—



Participants are Protected, Past — 2010:

- Released by EPA from all past Preconstruction
requirements in Title 1 of the Clean Air Act

« Part C -- Prevention of Significant Deterioration
(PSD)

= Part D -- New Source Review (NSR)

. Released from Past Operating Permit
requirements in Title V of Clean Air Act

® = Released from State SIPs
= Released from past CERCLA section 103 and
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